Minutes of a meeting of the Council of the Bolsover District Council held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Wednesday, 13 November 2019 at 10:00 hours.

PRESENT:-

Members:-

Councillor Tom Munro in the Chair

Councillors Rita Turner (Vice-Chair), Derek Adams, Allan Bailey, Rose Bowler, Jane Bryson, Tracey Cannon, Anne Clarke, Nick Clarke, Jim Clifton, Tricia Clough, Pat Cooper, Paul Cooper, David Dixon, Maxine Dixon, Mary Dooley, David Downes, Steve Fritchley, Ray Heffer, Andrew Joesbury, Tom Kirkham, Duncan McGregor, Clive Moesby, Evonne Parkin, Graham Parkin, Sandra Peake, Peter Roberts, Dan Salt, Liz Smyth, Janet Tait, Ross Walker, Deborah Watson, James Watson and Jen Wilson.

Officers:- Dan Swaine (Joint Chief Executive Officer), Karen Hanson (Joint Strategic Director - Place), Lee Hickin (Joint Strategic Director - People), Sarah Sternberg (Joint Head of Corporate Governance & Monitoring Officer), Theresa Fletcher (Head of Finance and Resources & Section 151 Officer), Nicola Calver (Governance Manager) and Thomas Scott (Temporary Governance Officer).

405 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dexter Bullock, Natalie Hoy and Chris Kane.

406 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor James Watson declared a non-significant other interest in agenda item 11 (LGPS Pensions Discretions 2019) and agenda item 12 (Reduction in Debt Charges through the use of reserves). Councillor Watson also indicated non-participation in these decisions.

Councillor Clive Moesby declared a non-significant other interest in agenda item 11 (LGPS Pensions Discretions 2019). Councillor Moesby also indicated non-participation in this decision.

407 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chair began his announcements with a mention of the recent passing of Annie Hall, the Former High Sherriff of Derbyshire. He stated that he worked with Annie on a number of occasions, and paid tribute to how kind she was.

The Chair requested that Members complete the Training Needs Survey e-mailed to them by the Governance team.

He announced that he had recently attended three events to represent the Council: a Remembrance service in Whitwell, the Remembrance Parade in Chesterfield and the Bolsover District Talent Showcase in Shirebrook. He stated that it was an honour to attend the Remembrance events, and the Talent Showcase raised £560 for charity.

The Chair passed over to Councillor Mary Dooley, who wished to mention that a blue plaque was recently unveiled in Pinxton for John King, the inventor of the mine cage safety detaching hook. She thanked Councillors Steve Fritchley and Ray Heffer on behalf of Pinxton Parish Council for attending the unveiling.

The Leader of the Council, was invited to speak and he moved to alter the order of business to defer agenda item 16 (Development Proposal – Whitwell Cluster – B@Home Framework) to a future Council meeting, because he felt Members needed more time to consider the report.

Proposed by Councillor Steve Fritchley and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor. **RESOLVED** that the order of business be amended to defer agenda item 16, 'Development Proposal – Whitwell Cluster – B@Home Framework' to a future meeting of Council.

408 MINUTES

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Derek Adams. **RESOLVED** that the minutes of the meeting held on 11th September 2019 be approved as a true and correct record and be duly signed by the Chair.

409 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8, members of the Public were able to ask questions to an Executive Member about the Council's activities for a period of up to 15 minutes.

i) <u>Question submitted to Portfolio Holder for Environmental Impact Councillor Nick Clarke</u> by Mr. Atkin:

In view of the mounting international controversy over the safety of 5G communications, does BDC have a policy on the subject?

Mr. Atkin gave some context in support of his question. He told Members how 5G technology was being rolled out in places all over the world, but a number of people had raised serious health concerns about using it. He added that if Bolsover District decides to introduce it, Members should research it before making a decision. Mr Atkins felt it was weapons-grade technology and the impact on humans and nature could be disastrous.

Mr. Atkin referred to instances all over the world of people reacting to the potential risks of 5G: a Senator in the United States of America admitted how the dangers of 5G had not been researched properly, and Japan had banned it outright. He concluded by stating that his question about Bolsover District Council having a policy on rolling out 5G was in view of all of these concerns.

Councillor Nick Clarke thanked Mr. Atkin for his question, and stated how he did not believe there was any formal Bolsover District Council policy relating to 5G technology.

Councillor Nick Clarke agreed with the concerns expressed by Mr. Atkin, and added that the need for more worldwide research into 5G technology was clear, particularly in light of WHO (World Health Organisation) conveying their concerns about 5G on a number of occasions. In concluding his response, Councillor Nick Clarke stated that he felt there should be a moratorium on any decisions or motions the Council might take on 5G technology in the future, until better research on the risks had been carried out.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION:

No supplementary question was submitted.

ii) <u>Question submitted to Portfolio Holder for Environmental Impact Councillor Nick Clarke</u> by Ms. Gilbert:

Has BDC received any planning applications from any communications company for the erection of any 5G masts or antennae?

Councillor Nick Clarke thanked Ms. Gilbert for her question, and explained how the planning applications for the masts themselves were part of an infrastructure commission that Bolsover District Council was not a part of. However, he added that Bolsover District Council would voice its concerns about 5G risks to the commission, and the public would be made fully aware of any future decisions the Council might take relating to 5G technology.

SUPPLEMENTARY QUESTION:

No supplementary question was submitted.

(Chief Executive Officer)

410 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9, Members of Council were able to ask questions about the Council's activities to either the Chair of the Council, Chairman of a specific Committee or a relevant Portfolio Holder.

No questions were submitted by Members under Procedure Rule 9.

411 MOTIONS

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10, Councillors were able to submit Motions on Notice for consideration at meetings of Council.

a) The following motion was submitted for consideration by Councillor Clive Moesby:

The Council are in receipt of a letter calling for a recognition of residents' concerns in relation to international developments in relation to nuclear weapons.

Below is the letter for reference:

We write as citizens, concerned at international developments which have no national or local barriers: which impinge on, and threaten, us all.

We note:

- The withdrawal of the USA from the International Treaty on Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons of 1970

- The withdrawal of the USA from The Paris Climate Agreement of 2015

Each of these agreements had been achieved only after extensive and prolonged discussions, at International, Bi-lateral and local level. Each of these agreements resulted from world-wide pressure from peoples everywhere.

We believe that the time has come when the peoples most concerned by the consequences of these decisions must okay their part in reversing these developments.

We further note:

We are not alone. Major powers, including Germany, China and Russia have declared their intention to implement their part in those agreements, - though as a result of President Trump's announcement, Russia too is withdrawing from the Non-proliferation Agreement.

Major Cities and States in the USA, including California and New York, have developed their own climate policies to meet those which President Trump has rejected.

Here in the UK, we have a history of local desire to play a part in these issues – expressed by the Derbyshire County Council's 'Nuclear-Free Zone' initiative at the time of the Cruise Missile crisis.

These examples show that we cannot leave our futures in the hands of the leaders who may be unworthy of such confidences. They show that popular pressure is needed to alert out populace of the dangers, and to get that awareness reflected in government decision making.

We are in a dangerous place, where the electorate and the peoples of the whole world are disfranchised from decisions which govern the quality or even the possibility of life on earth. We can work to lessen these dangers.

We appeal to Chesterfield Borough Council, North-East Derbyshire District Council, Bolsover District Council, and the Derbyshire County Council, to use their powers to act on these issues.

If you will join us, we may be able to make the world a less dangerous place. For further information, please contact us.

Yours faithfully Lyn Pardo (Secretary) lynpardo@phonecoop.coop Joe Clark (Chair Person) clamak@tiscali.co.uk

In response I move that the Council note its previous representations to HM Government requesting Bolsover to be declared a nuclear free zone in 1982 and reaffirms its position on this matter.

Councillor Steve Fritchley duly seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

On being put to the vote, the motion was carried.

Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Steve Fritchley **RESOLVED** that previous Council representations to HM Government be noted and that position is reaffirmed.

(Chief Executive Officer)

b) <u>The following motion was submitted for consideration by Councillor Tricia Clough:</u>

This Council demonstrates support for all women born in the 1950s who have unfairly borne the burden of increases to the State Pension Age (SPA) by the Pensions Act of 1995 and 2011 by:-

i) Calling upon the Government to make fair traditional State Pensions arrangements for all women born in the 1950s, who have unfairly borne the burden if the increase to the State Pension Age (SPA) with lack of appropriate notification.

ii) Identifying a named person as a champion for those women affected by state pension changes

iii) Notifying any interested parties as to council events where they may participate in educating and advising women about state pension changes."

3.8 million Women had significant pension changes imposed on them by the Pensions Acts of 1995 and 2011 with little or no personal notification of the changes. 6,100 of these women affected live in the Bolsover District. Some women received as little as two years' notice of the increases to their state pension age. Many had no notification at all.

Within the Bolsover District there are many women living in hardship purely because of the decade they were born in and the fact that successive governments gave inadequate notice of changes to their state pension age, not once but twice. Some women had already left the Labour Market, caring for elderly relatives or grandchildren – the sandwich generation. Others had been made redundant. Almost all were expecting their pension at 60. Instead they have had up to six years extra added which in real monetary terms means a loss of £48,000.

Of those who continue to work, many struggle mentally and physically. Some suffer discrimination in the workplace and feel guilty that the younger generation would be better equipped to carry out their roles. Others struggle to find employment and the proposition that there would be apprenticeships for women of this generation has proved nonsensical. Many women were ineligible for Job Seekers' allowance so had to watch their hard-earned savings dwindle away. At least one women in this district left work to care for her terminally-ill husband. After his death she attempted a Job Seekers' scheme. It was physically too demanding so she had to sell the family home quickly in order to survive.

We know that very little information was available for 1950's women when the 1995 Act was passed. A few small articles in financial papers and the occasional news item. As a full time worker with a husband, teenage daughter, four foster children, numerous pigs, piglets, chickens and pets, my reading matter was 'Bob the Builder' and I was tucked up in bed well before the '9 O' Clock News'. Letters did not go out until 2010 and then only for a small cohort. Following the 2011 Act more letters were sent but not to all affected. Women MPs from both sides of the house have stated they received no letter. Judges and lawyers were unaware as divorce settlements were agreed on the pension age being 60. Even the DWP's own website proclaimed the same until 1950s women pointed out the error.

These women have worked hard and contributed positively to society. They paid their taxes and national insurance with the expectation that they would be financially secure when reaching 60. It is not the pension age itself that is in dispute – it is widely accepted that women and men should retire at the same time (although one could argue that this generation who sought equality rarely received it in monetary terms). The issue here is that the rise in the women's state pension age has been too rapid. It has happened without sufficient notice being given to the women affected, leaving them with no time to make alternative arrangements.

We are now in a situation where one woman, through no fault of her own is having to walk five miles each way to access a computer to complete job applications. No bus pass until you reach State Pension age now. Another walks a similar distance on a Saturday to purchase the 10p reduced loaves to keep her going. Across the country there are women living in vans being unable to pay rent. And, of course, there are those who never received a penny of their pension. My friend Sue, a nurse for forty years contracted motor neurone disease. She campaigned for her pension tapping on her keyboard right until her final days.

But it is not only the women that are affected. It goes across the generations. Listen to these words from Heather: - "My mum was a WASPI woman. She died in January at the age of 62.

In the years before she died she had to fight for ESA and PIP as though she was a scrounger and didn't deserve the air she breathed. It took a huge toll on her mental health. She lived in real poverty and when she was dying in a hospice bed the main thing she was worried about was who was going to pay for it (thanks St Cuthbert's Hospice and out NHS).

I'll never forget the battles she had to fight." On 3rd October 2019, one group of 1950s women were unsuccessful in their High Court Judicial Review. (Case no: CO/3174/2018) In their conclusion, the judges wrote 'We are saddened by the stories we read in the evidence lodged by the Claimants. But our role as judges in this case it limited. There is no basis for concluding that the policy choices reflected in this legislation were not pen to Government. We are satisfied that they were. In any event they were approved by Parliament. The wider issues raised by the Claimants, about whether these choices were right or wrong or good or bad, are not for us; they are for the members of the public and their elected representatives'

So in summary, I ask Council, as elected representatives, to support the Motion for all 1950s women grotesquely disadvantaged by the 1995 and 2011 Pension Acts.

Councillor Anne Clarke duly seconded the motion, and conveyed her belief that lain Duncan Smith (when he was Secretary of State for Work and Pensions) and others in Central Government had refused to engage with women about their state pension ages. She added that because many women in the UK born in the 1950s were sometimes having to fund their own children and parents at the same time, the pension changes were an unfair burden on them. She reported that many women in the UK born in the 1950s had died waiting for their state pension because of the changes, and homelessness amongst the over 60s had increased in that time by 39%.

Councillor Anne Clarke felt that the submitted motion was a great opportunity for the Council to follow the examples of Unison and CEDAW (Convention on the Elimination of all Forms of Discrimination Against Women) by supporting all of the women affected by the state pension changes.

Councillor Peter Roberts reported that Central Government's estimated figure to completely reverse the state pension age changes made in 1995 and 2011 was £215 billion, which he felt would be a significant amount for them to spend. He expressed his belief that the motion should include more mention of men's state pension changes, because its focus on women could amount to inequality.

Councillor Janet Tait made reference to the campaign against the changes by WASPI (Women Against State Pension Inequality), and added that women born in the 1950s were at a significant disadvantage because they were not given any notice of the changes by Central Government.

Councillor Tricia Clough expressed her belief that women's state pensions were well below men's state pensions, and the actions of Central Government in recent years to change pension ages had added six additional years to the age that some women could claim, whilst men of the same age only had one additional year. She explained that this was why the motion was aimed at women in particular.

Moved by Councillor Tricia Clough and seconded by Councillor Anne Clarke **RESOLVED**

- i) To call upon the Government to make fair traditional State Pensions arrangements for all women born in the 1950s, who have unfairly borne the burden of the increase to the State Pension Age (SPA) with lack of appropriate notification.
- ii) To identify a named person as a champion for those women affected by state pension changes
- iii) To notify any interested parties as to council events where they may participate in educating and advising women about state pension changes.

(Chief Executive Officer)

c) The following motion was submitted for consideration by Councillor Steve Fritchley:

That the Council adopt the International Holocaust Remembrance Alliance (IHRA) working definition of anti-Semitism which is as follows:-

"Antisemitism is a certain perception of Jews, which may be expressed as hatred toward Jews. Rhetorical and physical manifestations of antisemitism are directed toward Jewish

or non-Jewish individuals and/or their property, toward Jewish community institutions and religious facilities."

The Leader spoke on his motion further, believing that adopting this definition of antisemitism would be a fitting tribute to every person who lost their lives as part of World War II, and all other wars as well.

Councillor Duncan McGregor duly seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

On being put to the vote, the motion was carried.

Moved by Councillor Steve Fritchley and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor **RESOLVED** the working definition of Anti-Semitism be adopted.

(Monitoring Officer)

d) <u>The following motion was submitted for consideration by Councillor James</u> Watson:

I move that from 1 December 2019 onwards, it is resolved that for any day where any member development and/or mandatory Councillor training sessions has scheduled to commence no earlier than 6:30pm on that day.

Councillor Allan Bailey duly seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

Councillor James Watson spoke on his motion further, explaining its relationship to another motion he submitted to Council on 17th July 2019, which proposed that from the municipal year 2020/21 onwards, some Council and Standing Committee meetings be scheduled to begin from 6.30 p.m. That motion was amended and carried to instead read "that Council consider [meetings after 6.30 p.m.] in advance of the next electoral cycle commencing in 2023."

Councillor James Watson explained that his motion on 17th July 2019 was submitted with the purpose of recognising Members who were in full-time or part-time employment beyond their Council work. He added that in his opinion, the reason the Members of the Labour Group did not vote for that motion at the 17th July 2019 Council meeting was because they had independent incomes and property portfolios, so were not concerned about honouring work commitments.

The Chair informed Councillor James Watson that it was inappropriate to refer to the personal business of individual Members. Councillor James Watson acknowledged the Chair's advice, but wished it to be recorded in the minutes that he had made reference to a Group rather than an individual.

Councillor James Watson explained his reasons for submitting the current motion. He believed that Member development sessions and Member training events should be scheduled later to allow as many Members to attend them as possible, and not giving them the opportunity would mean some Members weren't given vital guidance and advice relating to the Code of Conduct.

On being put to the vote, the motion was not carried.

e) The following motion was submitted for consideration by Councillor Nick Clarke:

I move that Bolsover District Council resolves:

To require all public firework displays within the District boundaries to be advertised in advance of the event, allowing residents to take precautions for their animals and vulnerable people.

To write to the Government urging them to legislate that the law be changed to only allow the sale of fireworks to operators of licensed displays.

To actively promote a public awareness campaign about the impact of fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people - including the precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks.

To write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to limit the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90db for those sold to the public for private displays.

To encourage local suppliers of fireworks to stock 'quieter' fireworks for public display.

To tighten up the restriction of sales of fireworks in the run up to Bonfire Night to under 18 year olds and to discourage proxy sales of fireworks for those under the age of 18.

Councillor Tom Kirkham duly seconded the motion and reserved his right to speak.

AMENDMENT

Councillor Andrew Joesbury proposed an amendment to the motion to add a new paragraph to the end, reading: "To write to the Government for a blanket ban on all firework sales to private individuals."

Councillor Andrew Joesbury spoke on his amendment, believing that there were multiple fire incidents all over the country on every Bonfire Night, and he felt the Government had done little to address it.

Councillor Dan Salt duly seconded the amendment.

Councillor Anne Clarke believed it was important to consider the effect fireworks could have on veterans who might have Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. She added that fireworks can also have a significant impact on pets.

Councillor Duncan McGregor advised that the second resolution within the original motion ("To write to the Government urging them to legislate that the law be changed to only allow the sale of fireworks to operators of licensed displays") already covered Councillor Andrew Joesbury's amendment. Councillor Andrew Joesbury, with the agreement of the seconder Councillor Dan Salt agreed to withdraw the amendment.

ORIGINAL MOTION

On being put to the vote, the original motion was carried.

RESOLVED that

- i) all public firework displays within the District boundaries to be advertised in advance of the event, allowing residents to take precautions for their animals and vulnerable people.
- ii) the Chief Executive Officer be requested to write to the Government urging them to legislate that the law be changed to only allow the sale of fireworks to operators of licensed displays.
- iii) a public awareness campaign be actively promoted about the impact of fireworks on animal welfare and vulnerable people including the precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks.
- iv) the Chief Executive be requested to write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to limit the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90db for those sold to the public for private displays.
- v) local suppliers of fireworks be encouraged to stock 'quieter' fireworks for public display.
- vi) the Authority tighten up the restriction of sales of fireworks in the run up to Bonfire Night to under 18 year olds and to discourage proxy sales of fireworks for those under the age of 18.

(Chief Executive Officer)

412 REPORTS ON URGENCY DECISIONS TAKEN BY THE EXECUTIVE

When appropriate, meetings of Council can receive a report from the Executive detailing any Key Decisions taken under special urgency provisions or Key Decisions exempt from Call-in.

There were no urgency decisions to report to this meeting of Council.

413 RECOMMENDED ITEMS

<u>Change to the Constitution – Joint Employment and Appeals Committee – Bolsover only</u> <u>appointments</u>

The Council gave consideration to a mid-year change to the Constitution in relation to Member panels for interviewing and appointing Bolsover only members of SAMT.

A report had been submitted to the Standards Committee on the 23rd September 2019 in relation to the options for the interview panel and the recommendations were set out in Appendix 1 to the report. It was suggested by Standards Committee that the following wording be added to the JEAC Terms of Reference for Bolsover only posts.

"Where the Authority determines to recruit to a Head of Service or Director post outside the Strategic Alliance or determines to take any disciplinary action in relation to such a post the Member panel will be called the Employment and Appeals Committee and will

comprise the four Members of the JEAC, and, where there are two Leaders of the Opposition of groups of equal size, both Leaders of the Opposition will be Members of the Employment and Appeals Committee – increasing the size of the Committee to 5.

Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Andrew Joesbury **RESOLVED** that the recommendations from the Standards Committee to amend the Terms of Reference for the Joint Employment and Appeals Committee for Bolsover only posts be approved.

(Monitoring Officer)

414 CHANGE OF COMMITTEE SEATS

The Chair explained a proposal to agree the replacement of Councillor Janet Tait by Councillor Rita Turner on the General Licensing Committee and Licensing and Gambling Acts Committees.

Moved by Councillor Sandra Peake and seconded by Councillor Mary Dooley. **RESOLVED** that Councillor Rita Turner be replaced by Councillor Janet Tait on the General Licensing Committee and Licensing and Gambling Acts Committees.

(Governance Manager)

415 LGPS PENSIONS DISCRETIONS 2019

A series of changes had been made to the discretions available to the Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS), which came into effect from 1st April 2014. Under the LGPS regulations, employers were required to formulate, publish and keep under a review a policy statement in relation to the exercise of a number of discretions that were available. Members gave consideration to a report which proposed policy and approach on these discretions.

It was noted that the Councils proposed position was based on the discretions approved by Derbyshire County Council, and attached, at Appendix 1 to the report, was a list of discretions for which employers must consider in a policy statement under the scheme.

Having considered the proposals put, Members agreed the publication of the Councils position.

Moved by Councillor Duncan McGregor and seconded by Councillor Steve Fritchley. **RESOLVED** that the policy and approach on the discretions the Council had to make be published in respect of its discretions under the LGPS.

(Section 151 Officer)

416 REDUCTION IN DEBT CHARGES THROUGH USE OF RESERVES

Councillor Clive Moesby presented a report proposing that that Council agree to refinance the Capital Programme from reserves of £3.937m rather than borrowing. He explained how this would make substantial savings through reduced debt charges.

Councillor Graham Parkin enquired if the interest rate on the reserves was less or more favourable than the cost for borrowing. The Section 151 Officer explained that the rates were immaterial as the money in question would not go out of the Authority. If it did go out of the Council, the interest rate would be whatever the base rate was at that time.

Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Steve Fritchley. **RESOLVED** that the Council re-finances the Capital Programme from reserves of £3.937m rather than borrowing, to make substantial savings through reduced debt charges.

(Section 151 Officer)

417 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

Moved by Councillor Tom Munro and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor **RESOLVED** that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the stated Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and it is not in the public interest for that to be revealed. [The category of exempt information is stated after each Minute].

418 HEAD OF SERVICE AND SECTION 151 OFFICER

Members gave consideration to a report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and Resources which sought approval to establish the post of Head of Service – Finance and Resources (including S151 statutory responsibility) for Bolsover District Council, to disestablish the Joint Head of Service – Finance and Resources post and also Chief Accountants post and to appoint a dedicated Head of Service – Finance and Resources (including S151 statutory responsibility) for Bolsover District Council.

Members gave consideration to the report and the rationale detailed within.

Moved by Councillor Clive Moesby and seconded by Councillor Steve Fritchley **RESOLVED** that

- 1) the post of Head of Service Finance and Resources (including S151 statutory responsibility) for Bolsover District Council be established
- 2) both posts of Joint Head of Service Finance and Resources and Chief Accountant be disestablished and
- Theresa Fletcher be appointed as Head of Service Finance and Resources (including S151 statutory responsibility) for Bolsover District Council.

(Chief Executive Officer)

(Recorded Vote: Councillor James Watson – Abstention)

419 PROPOSED ADDITION TO MANAGEMENT CAPACITY

At its September meeting the Executive approved to increase capacity within the Senior Management Team by adding a Bolsover only Director of Development and a Bolsover only Assistant Director of Development to the Bolsover establishment. Members gave consideration to the report to formally establish these two positions to ratify the interview process and to make the formal appointments as a result of recent recruitment exercises. In addition, the report requested to disestablish the post of the Joint Head of Property and Estates.

Having considered the content of the report Members were satisfied to make the following agreements:

Moved by Councillor Steve Fritchley and seconded by Councillor Duncan McGregor **RESOLVED** that

- the posts of Director of Development and Assistant Director of Development as outlined in the appendices to the report and on the terms and conditions outlined within the Leaders report to Executive be established,
- 2) the appointment of the panel to interview the Director of Development be ratified as set out within the report,
- 3) the appointment of the panel to interview the Assistant Director of Development be ratified as set out within the report,
- 4) that Grant Galloway be appointed to the post of Director of Development for Bolsover District Council,
- 5) that Chris Fridlington be appointed to the post of Assistant Director of Development for Bolsover District Council; and
- 6) the post of Joint Head of Property and Estates be disestablished.

(Chief Executive Officer)

(Recorded Vote: Councillor James Watson – Abstention)

420 DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL - WHITWELL CLUSTER - B@HOME FRAMEWORK

At the commencement of the meeting it was resolved that the Development Proposal – Whitwell Cluster – B@Home Framework be deferred to a future meeting of Council.

The meeting concluded at 10:59 hours.